NORTH CAROLINA. .BEFORE'THE NORTH CAROLINA
"WAKE COUNTY BOARD‘OF FIUNERAL SERVICE:

Tivthig maiter of;

Nelson Funeral Service,
and William Harvey Knots; I,

CASE NOS:. M18:0013

CONSENT ORDER:

Responideiits,

THIS CAUSE,.coming before the North Carolina Board of Funeral Setvice (Hereinatter the

“Board”) atits offices at 1033 Wade Avenue; Suite 108, Raleigh, North Carolina 27605, witha.quoren
resent; the'Board and: Respondents stipulate'and:agree to-entry of the following Consenit Order::

L.

o

FINDINGS OF FACT

\Nelson Funeral Service, located in-Rockingham, North Carolifia; (Hereinafer “Respondent
‘Funeral ‘Home”) 'is licénsed: as Pureral Establishment, No.. 172 and. Preneed Funeral

Establishment No. ‘890 by the Board and, therefore, is:subject to Chapter.90. of the Noith:

:Carolina General Statutes and Title 21, Chapter 34-of the North Carolina Administrative Code
and the standards set forth in Funeral:Industry Practices, 16:C.F.R. §.453 (1984).

 William Harvey Knotts, IL (hereinafter “Respondent Knoits” or, collectively with Réspondent

Funieral Home, “Respondents™) is licensed as Funerdl Service Licensee Né., 1142 and,
itherefore, is stibject to Chapter 90 of the North Carolina General Statutes and Title 21, Chajter.
34 of the Noith Céroliria Admiristrative Code and the stardards set forth in Fineral: Industry
Practices; 16 C:F.R.§ 453/(1984), Respondent Knotts holds a preneed sales license on behalf
‘'of Respondért Fiineral Homie,

«+ Respondent Knotts:is the licensed manager of Respondent Funeral Home.

;; In October 2017, the Board enatéered into a-Consent Order with Respondent Knotts (the “2017

‘Consent:Order).

Trthe 2017 Consent Order, the parties agreed that Respondent Knotts had sold a tiist-finded
‘preneed Coritrdct 1o a-Consumerbuf Tiad failed to timely negotiate the ‘consumer’s checks:
tenderéd as payment toward the contract and had failed to ‘properly depositithe payments irito:
tfustaccount uséd'to fund the cqnéi‘iniei"_spré'r:leed funeral contract. The parties further agreed:
that Respondent Knotts had failed to timély file multiple preneed funeral contracts with the
‘Board.

A"'s‘_-,g'geéu_h.ofﬂm findings of fact-and conclusiors of law'set forth in'the 2017 Consent Order;
the funeral service license of Respondent Knotts was placed on probation £0f a period of three
(3) years.
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7. :Onor about January 30, 2018, Inspector Katen Davis condiicted an éxaminatiosi of Trést and.

Insurdnce-Funded Préneed Contracts for which Respondexts serve as trustee.. During the 2018,

ation, Inspector-Davis found that the following prenced contteicts had not-beed timely:

filed with the Board within ten'(10) days.of the date of salej as required by N.C..Gen. Stat, §.

-90:210:67(d).and 21.NC Admin Code34D..0105: ‘ ' ’
a.. -Audrey Stuart; -

b. Doney Washington;

¢. James Watkins;

d. ‘Ruth'Watkins;

e. ‘Odessa:Brown;;

£ ‘Mexié Bumetie;,

g.. James'Heavner,Sr.;

. -Dorothy Hight;:

i, CharlesIngram;

j+ ‘Delois Jones;

k.. Margaret Livingston;:

L RobertLobg,

n. Mildred McLaurin;

1 ‘Thelma Croech;

o.. "Thelina Leak;

.. Lillé Siaith; and

q. -Ezell Sanders.

8. During:the 2018 Examination, Inspector Davis found that {hie Responderits.did.riot properly
‘calculate the credits-owed 10 two eoniSiiness foF cash,advance, and salés ta% items, ox tieir
‘closed inflation-proof preneed contracts, in-violation'of N.C. Gen. Stat..§ 90-210.62(a).

9. During the 2018 Examination, Inspector Davis found that Respondents failedl to retain a.copy:
of an/atneed Statement of Funial Goods'ard Seiviges Seleéted.in the folowine elosed
‘preneed contract files, in violation of N:C. Gen. Stat. §§-90-210.62(a), 50-210:68(a) and 21
NC Admin Code 34D-:0301(b): |

oy

» ‘George Ellerbe;

. .Elease Davis;

. Roinigll Jonés;
James Sinith.Sr.; and

. ‘Lucius Thompkins

=

o aen

10:Dusing the 2018 Examinstion; Inspector Davis found that Regponidents fiiled to complete and.

ifile. with the Board a Certificate of Performance within ten (10) days of paymerit and failed to
Aaititaina copyof a Certificate of Performance in the following closed preneéd contract files;
:in violation of N.C. Gen. Stat. §§-90-210.68(a),(e)(3).and 90-210.64(a):

a. James-Smith, St.;
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8. Lucius Thompkins;
i¢. Arthur McLean;.and.
id, Christopher Short.

'CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

. The'aets aiid ornissions of Resp orident Knots, described in: Paragraphs 1:10, viofate thie terms

of the Consent Order.

The aets and omissions of' Respondents, described in Paragraphs 1-10, violate:N,C; Gen. Stat.
§90-210.25(e)(1)ji, which:prohibits.violating any provision of Articles 13A;:13D; 13K; arid/o¥
13E of Chapter 90 of the Noith Carolina-General -Statiites; all rules and- regulations of the
Board, and the standards set forthin 16 C.F.R. § 453 (1984), as.amiended from time'to time:

. Theacts and omissions of Respondents, describied in Paragraphs 1-10, uviolg;_efﬁ.(';‘;.fGé_h;.:Sta‘t.‘

§90-210.69(c)(6); which prohibits violating preneed provisions of the Board’s laws and'rules,

- ‘Theacts and omissions of Responderts, deséribed'in Paragraphs 1:10, violate N.C. Gen. Stat.

§ 90-210.67(d) and 21 NC Admin. Code 34D .0105, which requires preneed licensees to file
all preneed contracts with the Board within ted (10) days of the date of sale.

. “The gcts and omissions of Resporidents; described in Paragraph 1-10, violate N.C. Gen. Stat:

§:90-210:62(a) by failing to properly calculate the credits owed to two-consumers fot cash

advance and sales tdx iteims on their closed inflation-proof preneed contracts

- "The acts and omiSsioris of Respondents, described in Paragraphs 1-10, violate N.C. Gen. Stat.

§'90-210.68(=) and 21 NCAC 34D .0301(b).and (e), which'requires every. preneed licensec'to

.

-keep a copy of each preneéd contract, together with a copy.of the certificate.of performance,
the preneed statement of funeral goods and services and asigned at-need statement of funeral

goods-and services, for each closed preneed contract file.

“The acts and. omissions of Respondents; deseribed in Paragraphis 1-10, violate NiC. Gen. Stat.

§90-210.64() and 21 NCAC 34D ..0303(b), which requires every preneed licensee to file with
‘thie Board a certificate of performance Withiii ten (10) day's after receiving payment.

.. ‘Pursuant to N.C, Gen. Stat. §§ 90-210.25(e)(1)j;, the Board has the authority to suspend,
;Tevoke, or refuse to issue or renew the funeral director’s license of Respondent Knotts: If the
‘Boatd concludes that Réspondent Knotts eommitted any of the aforementioned violations, but

‘Témains fit:to practice, pursuant to' N.C.-Gen. Stat, § '90"210-25('9)13),4 the aBle_I"d_J-iias tho
‘authofity 6 place Respondent Knotts on probation.and to assess a civil penalty not to éxceed
*$5,000.00.

‘Pursuant to.N.C. Gen, Stat. § 90-210.35 (d)(4), the Board has the authority.to revéiﬁe;~ suspend;
wor Tefuse tg issue-or renew the fungral establishment permit.of Respondent -Funerdl Home, or
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to place' Respondent Funera! Honie on probation, and to.assess a civil ‘perialty riot to:excéed
$5,000.00.

10. Pursiant to N.C. Geii. Stat. §§ 90-210.69(c) and (£); the Board has the:authority to revoke;
suspend, or refuse to issue or renew.the preneed establishment permit-and:all ancillary prenced
sales licenses of Respondent Funeral Home, or to. place. Respondent Funeral Home'-on
probation, andto assess a civil penalty-not to exceed $5,000.00..

-BASED upon the forégoing Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law; and in lieu-of further
‘proceedings, Respondents wish to resolve this:matter by consent: and:agree that Board staff-and
counsel may discuss:this Consetit Order.with the Board ex:parfe whether or not the Board accépts
this Cornisent Order as written. '

Whereas Respondents acknowledge that they have. read this entire ‘document :and
understand jt; '

Whereas Respondents acknowledge that they énter int6. this Conseiit Order freely and
voluntarily;

_ Whereas Responderits acknowledge-that they have had full and adequate opportunity to
conferwith legal counsel in connection with this matter; '

‘Whereas RespOndents?»under_stand? that this Consent Ordér riust be presented to the Board
for ‘approval and, that Respondents hereby ‘waive any argument- that any. Board .members
considering this Consent Order are disqualified from participating ix.a hearing 6F thiis. matter; and'

Whereas the Board has determined that the public interest is served by resolving this matter
‘as set forth below.

THEREFORE, With the consent of Respondents, it is ORDERED thiat:

1; The Board hereby susperds for at least two (2) years the preneed establishment permit and
any-and 2ll ancillary preneed sales licenses of Respondent Funeral Honie, provided that
said suspension shall:be stayed on the following terms.and conditions;

a. Respondent Funeral Home shallundergo and pass without substanial deficiencies
a.prenced examination of its trust-funded and insurance~-funded:preneed contracts,
to be conducted on or before January. 2021, prior to. the expiration of the stayed
‘suspension;

b. Respondent Funeral Home'shall not violate any laiw or rule of the Board duting thie
period of suspension;

¢. Respondent Funeral Home shall timely respond:to.any and all Board andfor Board
staff correspondence;
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-d. Respondent Funeral Home shiall comply with alf terms of this Consent Order; and.

¢, Within thirty (30) days:from ﬂie:date'fthis.Cbnseﬁt’o}der-takesreﬁ'éct;"Resgondeﬂti

Funeral-Home shall pay d-compiomise penalty of Thrée Thovisind (83,000.00):
Dollars to the Civil Penalty and Forfeifure Fund in accordance with Article 314 of
Chapter 115C of the Noith Caroling Geeral Statutes.

2. The Board hereby puts on probation t,lj_g Funeral Service license of Réspondént Knotts for

tWo (2) year, on-the following terms and conditions:

1a; ‘Withifi' thitty (30) days from the date this Consent Order takes effect, Respondent-
Knotts'shall pay a compromise ‘penalty of Five Hundred ($500.00) Dollars to the-
Civil Pénalty and Forféiture Fund in accordance:with Arficle 31A-of Chapter-
115C of the North Carolina:General Statutes: )

b. Respondent Knotts shall not violate any law ot file-of the Boatd duririg the hériod
of probation;

¢, Respondent Knotts shall timely respond to any and all Board and/or;Board staff
correspondence; and’ )

‘d. Respondent Knotts shall:comply withall terms of this Consent Grder.

3. The Board shall rethin jurisdiction under Artiele 3A, Chapter 150B: for-all’ administrative:
‘hearings held in. conection with or putsuant to this. Conigent Ordér.. ‘If-the Board Teceives.

-evidence that Respondents, collectively or individually, have violated any term ofthis Consent-
‘Order'or any other law or rule enforced by.thé Béard, the Board shall schédile-a siow cause.
hearing for. a determiination of -the- vialations, If the Boari determines that a Violation has
‘aceurted; thé Bodird fdy impose such disciplinary agtion as.it deterimines i$ appropiiate and is.
-authorized by law, B

4. This Consent Order shall fake effect immediately upon its.éxecution by all parties:and reflects
‘he’entire agreement between Respondents-and the Bodrd, there being no agreementof any-
‘kind, verbal or otherwise, which varies, dlters, or modifies this Consent Order.

5., No'modification or waiver of any provision of this-Consent Order shall be effective:unless it:
15 In writing, adopted and approved by the Bodsd, and signed by the parties affécted.

6. Boththe Board and Respondents participated in the disfiing of this' Consent Otder. Any
;ambipuities hereitr shall not be consfrued against. either party in any future ‘civil -or
iadministrative proceeding.

7. Respondents heteby waive.any réquirement under any law or rule thiat this Consént Oider be:
‘served upon them.
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8. Upun its'execution by the Board and’ Resp oriderits, this:Consent Order $hail become a public
‘recard withii the méaninig of Chapter 132 of the Notth Carollna Gegeral Stafitss and shall'hs.
subjeet to public inspection-and dissemiination pursuant to the provisions thereof.

W=

Wllliam Harvey Knoﬁs, lI .

Hﬁl&bi!;ﬁbne"rﬁél Service

WﬂﬂamHaneyKnotts, T RN gt
Manager .

'B'bazd Prosidert:
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Thereby certify that a copy of thié Consent Ordér was sent by Uriited States:Postal Service;
‘first'class, _liost_a.ge;prepaid,'addressed to:

William Harvey Knotts, -Hs_*_Maha_ge;'
Nelson Funeral Service
1021 E.'Washington Street
RocKingham, NC 28379

Williari Haivey Kiiofts, 1T
POBox746
Hamlet, NC 28345

i —

“Catherine E. Leo - i

Thisthe 19 day of January; 2019,




